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§ 489.35 Notice to intermediary. 
The provider must inform its inter-

mediary of any amounts collected from 
a beneficiary or from other persons on 
his or her behalf.

Subpart D—Handling of Incorrect 
Collections

§ 489.40 Definition of incorrect collec-
tion. 

(a) As used in this subpart, ‘‘incor-
rect collections’’ means any amounts 
collected from a beneficiary (or some-
one on his or her behalf) that are not 
authorized under subpart C of this part. 

(b) A payment properly made to a 
provider by an individual not consid-
ered entitled to Medicare benefits will 
be deemed to be an ‘‘incorrect collec-
tion’’ when the individual is found to 
be retroactively entitled to benefits.

§ 489.41 Timing and methods of han-
dling. 

(a) Refund. Prompt refund to the ben-
eficiary or other person is the preferred 
method of handling incorrect collec-
tions. 

(b) Setting aside. If the provider can-
not refund within 60 days from the date 
on the notice of incorrect collection, it 
must set aside an amount, equal to the 
amount incorrectly collected, in a sep-
arate account identified as to the indi-
vidual to whom the payment is due. 
This amount incorrectly collected 
must be carried on the provider’s 
records in this manner until final dis-
position is made in accordance with 
the applicable State law. 

(c) Notice to, and action by, inter-
mediary. (1) The provider must notify 
the intermediary of the refund or set-
ting aside required under paragraphs 
(a) and (b) of this section. 

(2) If the provider fails to refund or 
set aside the required amounts, they 
may be offset against amounts other-
wise due the provider.

§ 489.42 Payment of offset amounts to 
beneficiary or other person. 

(a) In order to carry out the commit-
ment to refund amounts incorrectly 
collected, CMS may determine that 
amounts offset in accordance with 
§ 489.41 are to be paid directly to the 

beneficiary or other person from whom 
the provider received the incorrect col-
lection, if: 

(1) CMS finds that the provider has 
failed, following written request, to re-
fund the amount of the incorrect col-
lection to the beneficiary or other per-
son; and 

(2) The provider agreement has been 
terminated in accordance with the pro-
visions of subpart E of this part. 

(b) Before making a determination to 
make payment under paragraph (a) of 
this section, CMS will give written no-
tice to the provider (1) explaining that 
an incorrect collection was made and 
the amount; (2) requesting the provider 
to refund the incorrect collection to 
the beneficiary or other person; and (3) 
advising of CMS’s intention to make a 
determination under paragraph (a) of 
this section. 

(c) The notice will afford an author-
ized official of the provider an oppor-
tunity to submit, within 20 days from 
the date on the notice, written state-
ment or evidence with respect to the 
incorrect collection and/or offset 
amounts. CMS will consider any writ-
ten statement or evidence in making a 
determination. 

(d) Payment to a beneficiary or other 
person under the provisions of para-
graph (a) of this section: 

(1) Will not exceed the amount of the 
incorrect collection; and 

(2) May be considered as payment 
made to the provider.

Subpart E—Termination of Agree-
ment and Reinstatement After 
Termination

§ 489.52 Termination by the provider. 
(a) Notice to CMS. (1) A provider that 

wishes to terminate its agreement 
must send CMS written notice of its in-
tent. 

(2) The notice may state the intended 
date of termination which must be the 
first day of a month. 

(b) Termination date. (1) If the notice 
does not specify a date, or the date is 
not acceptable to CMS, CMS may set a 
date that will not be more than 6 
months from the date on the provider’s 
notice of intent. 

(2) CMS may accept a termination 
date that is less than 6 months after 
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the date on the provider’s notice if it 
determines that to do so would not un-
duly disrupt services to the community 
or otherwise interfere with the effec-
tive and efficient administration of the 
Medicare program. 

(3) A cessation of business is deemed 
to be a termination by the provider, ef-
fective with the date on which it 
stopped providing services to the com-
munity. 

(c) Public notice. (1) The provider 
must give notice to the public at least 
15 days before the effective date of ter-
mination. 

(2) The notice must be published in 
one or more local newspapers and 
must— 

(i) Specify the termination date; and 
(ii) Explain to what extent services 

may continue after that date, in ac-
cordance with the exceptions set forth 
in § 489.55.

§ 489.53 Termination by CMS. 
(a) Basis for termination of agreement 

with any provider. CMS may terminate 
the agreement with any provider if 
CMS finds that any of the following 
failings is attributable to that pro-
vider: 

(1) It is not complying with the pro-
visions of title XVIII and the applica-
ble regulations of this chapter or with 
the provisions of the agreement. 

(2) It places restrictions on the per-
sons it will accept for treatment and it 
fails either to exempt Medicare bene-
ficiaries from those restrictions or to 
apply them to Medicare beneficiaries 
the same as to all other persons seek-
ing care. 

(3) It no longer meets the appropriate 
conditions of participation or require-
ments (for SNFs and NFs) set forth 
elsewhere in this chapter. 

(4) It fails to furnish information 
that CMS finds necessary for a deter-
mination as to whether payments are 
or were due under Medicare and the 
amounts due. 

(5) It refuses to permit examination 
of its fiscal or other records by, or on 
behalf of CMS, as necessary for 
verification of information furnished 
as a basis for payment under Medicare. 

(6) It failed to furnish information on 
business transactions as required in 
§ 420.205 of this chapter. 

(7) It failed at the time the agree-
ment was entered into or renewed to 
disclose information on convicted indi-
viduals as required in § 420.204 of this 
chapter. 

(8) It failed to furnish ownership in-
formation as required in § 420.206 of this 
chapter. 

(9) It failed to comply with civil 
rights requirements set forth in 45 CFR 
parts 80, 84, and 90. 

(10) In the case of a hospital or a crit-
ical access hospital as defined in sec-
tion 1861(mm)(1) of the Act that has 
reason to believe it may have received 
an individual transferred by another 
hospital in violation of § 489.24(d), the 
hospital failed to report the incident to 
CMS or the State survey agency. 

(11) In the case of a hospital re-
quested to furnish inpatient services to 
CHAMPUS or CHAMPVA beneficiaries 
or to veterans, it failed to comply with 
§ 489.25 or § 489.26, respectively. 

(12) It failed to furnish the notice of 
discharge rights as required by § 489.27. 

(13) It refuses to permit photocopying 
of any records or other information by, 
or on behalf of CMS, as necessary to 
determine or verify compliance with 
participation requirements. 

(14) The hospital knowingly and will-
fully fails to accept, on a repeated 
basis, an amount that approximates 
the Medicare rate established under 
the inpatient hospital prospective pay-
ment system, minus any enrollee 
deductibles or copayments, as payment 
in full from a fee-for-service FEHB 
plan for inpatient hospital services pro-
vided to a retired Federal enrollee of a 
fee-for-service FEHB plan, age 65 or 
older, who does not have Medicare Part 
A benefits. 

(b) Termination of agreements with cer-
tain hospitals. In the case of a hospital 
or critical access hospital that has an 
emergency department, as defined in 
§ 489.24(b), CMS may terminate the pro-
vider agreement if— 

(1) The hospital fails to comply with 
the requirements of § 489.24 (a) through 
(e), which require the hospital to exam-
ine, treat, or transfer emergency med-
ical condition cases appropriately, and 
require that hospitals with specialized 
capabilities or facilities accept an ap-
propriate transfer; or 
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